
AGENDA 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Madison County Mass Transit District 
8:30 a.m., Thursday, January 27, 2022 
1 Transit Way, Pontoon Beach, Illinois 

Section Item Recommendation 

I. Pledge of Allegiance.

II. Call to Order:  Roll Call.

III. Public Comments.

IV. Consideration of the minutes of the December 16, 2021,
regular meeting, for inclusion in the District’s official records.

Discussion/Action 

V. Financial:

A. Payments and Claims: Consideration of the December 2021
Claims for Payment.

Discussion/Action 

B. Monthly Financial Report: Review of the Monthly Financial
Records as of December 31, 2021.

Discussion/Action 

C. Quarterly Investment Update Information 

D. Update on Managed Investment Services: Busey Bank Information 

E. Resolution 22-32 Authorizing an Award of Contract for MCT
Auditing Services

Discussion/Action 

VI. Services:

A. Managing Director’s Report, SJ Morrison Information 

B. MCT Trails Bike Summit Discussion 

C. Resolution 22-33 Authorizing the Filing of an Application with
the East-West Gateway Council of Governments for
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Funds for
the Alternative Transportation Program

Discussion/Action 

D. ACT Community Action Grants Program Presentation Information 

E. Ordinance 22-01 Adopting an Ethics Policy for the Madison
County Mass Transit District

Discussion/Action 

F. Resolution 22-34 Allowing All Madison County, Illinois
Students in Grades K-12 to Ride the MCT Fixed Route
System Free of Charge with the 2022 MCT Summer Youth
Pass

Discussion/Action 



AGENDA 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Madison County Mass Transit District 
8:30 a.m., Thursday, January 27, 2022 
1 Transit Way, Pontoon Beach, Illinois 

G. Resolution 22-35 Authorizing Limited Free Rides on MCT
Fixed Route Buses as Part of Spring 2022 Ridership
Promotions

Discussion/Action 

H. Resolution 22-36 Authorizing the Purchase of a Vehicle for
Venice Township, to Serve the Residents of Madison County,
Illinois, and the Execution of Motor Vehicle Lease and/or
Maintenance Agreement

Discussion/Action 

VII. Executive Session to discuss the acquisition or lease of real
property under (5), and Security Procedures under (8), of the
Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2 (c)):

Discussion 

VIII. Other Business

A. Resolution 22-37 Authorizing the Acquisition of Property,
Including the Use of the Power of Eminent Domain

Discussion/Action 

B. Resolution 22-38 Authorizing the Acceptance of Real Property
from Madison County

Discussion/Action 

IX. Adjournment. Discussion/Action 



I. Pledge of Allegiance

MINUTES 

Board of Trustees 

Madison County Mass Transit District 

8:30 a.m., Thursday, December 16, 2021 

1 Transit Way, Pontoon Beach, Illinois 

Chairman Jedda led the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance.

II. Call to Order: Roll Call

Jedda called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 

OTHERS PRESENT: 

Ill. Public Comments: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE, CHRISTOPHER C. GUY, ANDREW F. 

ECONOMY, AND RONALD L. JEDDA 

J. KELLY SCHMIDT

STEVEN J. MORRISON, ACT; AMANDA SMITH, ACT; 

MICHELLE DOMER, ACT; ROB SCHMIDT, ACT; DEBBIE 

BARRON, ACT; PHIL ROGGIO, ACT; PENNY BROWN, ACT; 

JULIE REPP, ACT; MARK STEYER, ACT; ANDY 

CARRUTHERS,LEGAL COUNSEL 

No public comments were presented. 

IV. Executive session to discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline,

performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for

the public body under (1), of the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2(c)).

UPON MOTION DULY MADE BY ADOMITE, SECONDED BY GUY, AND UNANIMOUSLY

APPROVED BY JEDDA, GUY, ADOMITE, AND ECONOMY, UNDER 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1), THE

BOARD ENTERED EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION TO DISCUSS THE APPOINTMENT,

EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION, DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF

SPECIFIC EMPLOYEES OF THE DISTRICT

FOLLOWING THE EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION, THE CHAIR ANNOUNCED THAT AN

EVALUATION WAS DISCUSSED BUT NO ACTION WAS TAKEN

V. Consideration of the minutes of the November 18, 2021, regular meeting for inclusion in

the Official Records of the District.

ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY ECONOMY, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES

FOR INCLUSION IN THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE DISTRICT.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

 



ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 

ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 

RONALD L. JEDDA A YE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED 

VI. Financial

A Payments and Claims: Consideration of the November 2021 claims for payment:

Managing Director SJ Morrison presented the payments and claims report. 

GUY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY ADOMITE, TO APPROVE THE PAYMENTS 
AND CLAIMS TO THE AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

B. Monthly Financial Report: Review of the monthly financial records as of November 30,

2021.

Managing Director, Steven J. Morrison, presented the monthly financial report.

ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY ECONOMY, TO APPROVE OF THE

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

VII. Services

A Managing Director's Report:

Managing Director, Steven J. Morrison, presented the Managing Director's Report. 

B. ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY ECONOMY, TO APPROVE THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

22-27 AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A VEHICLE FOR NAMEOKI 
TOWNSHIP, TO SERVE THE RESIDENTS OF MADISON COUNTY 

 



A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

C. ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY ECONOMY, TO APPROVE THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

22-28 APPOINTING DIRECTORS OF THE AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT, 
INC. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JED DA A YE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

D. ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY ECONOMY, TO APPROVE THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

22-29 AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION WITH THE FEDERAL 
TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION FOR CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE AND RELIEF 
SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT (CRRSAA) OF 2021 FORMULA 
FUNDS TO OFFSET OERATING EXPENSES 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

E. RESOLUTION 22-30 ADOPTING AN ETHICS POLICY FOR THE MADISON COUNTY
MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT WAS NOT DISCUSSED AND WILL BE TABLED UNTIL NEXT
MONTH.

VIII. Other Business

No other business was presented.

IX. Executive session to discuss the acquisition or lease of real property under (5),

litigation under (11 ), and discussion of lawfully closed minutes under (21 ), of the Open

Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2(c)).

 



ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY GUY, TO MOVE INTO EXECUTIVE 

(CLOSED) SESSION TO DISCUSS THE ACQUISITION OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY 

UNDER (5), LITIGATION UNDER (11 ), AND DISCUSSION OF LAWFULLY CLOSED 

MINUTES UNDER (21), OF THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT (5 ILCS 120/2(C)). 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 

ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 

RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED 

FOLLOWING THE CLOSED SESSION, THE MEETING RETURNED TO OPEN SESSION 

AND THE CHAIR ANNOUNCED THAT THE SUBJECT MATTERS DISCUSSED IN THE 

CLOSED SESSION WERE THOSE IDENTIFIED IN THE MOTION TO ENTER CLOSED 

SESSION AND THAT NO ACTIONS WERE TAKEN IN THE CLOSED SESSION. 

X. Adjournment:

ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY ECONOMY, TO ADJOURN.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 

ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 

RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:58 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted. 

 



























Madison County Transit District
Management Report of Revenue and Expenses
December, 2021 Percentage

Increase / Budget %
Current Current Prior (Decrease) FY22 Expended
Month YTD YTD Over Prior YTD Budget (50% of FY)

Revenue
Operating Revenue
Sales Tax Revenue $1,001,280.62 $6,285,112.32 $5,370,581.87 17% $9,500,000 66%
Interest Income 60,966.65 336,563.06 519,663.03 -35% 675,000 50%
IDOT Operating Assistance 1,532,688.12 8,682,688.12 8,095,686.38 0% 16,500,000 53%
Federal CARES Act Funding 0.00 984,501.00 215,592.00 0% 4,875,000 20%
Local Sales Tax Reform Fund 312,334.12 1,771,945.96 2,101,845.44 -16% 3,000,000 59%
CMAQ Rideshare Marketing and Outreach 119,150.00 119,150.00 155,850.00 0% 709,000 17%
Commuter Initiative 0.00 0.00 20,061.40 0% 75,000 0%
Fares 0.00 85,000.00 82,500.00 0% 540,000 16%
Other Revenue 60.50 136,065.72 132,791.39 2% 141,000 97%
Lease/Rental Income 0.00 47,747.69 20,170.18 100% 0 0%
Total Operating Revenue $3,026,480.01 $18,448,773.87 $16,714,741.69 10% $36,015,000 51%
Capital Revenue
FTA Transit Admin Section 5307 $0.00 $240,619.00 $229,082.00 0% $9,926,100 2%
FTA Transit Admin Section 5339 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 0 0%
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 4,482,000 0%
Rebuild Illinois 0.00 126,914.25 0.00 0% 14,757,000 1%
Illinois Department of Transportation 0.00 3,962.87 0.00 0% 6,000,000 0%
Illinois Department of Natural Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 741,000 0%
Intergovernmental Agreements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 0 0%
Metro East Park and Recreation District 0.00 0.00 42,434.88 0% 2,350,000 0%
Ruture Grants 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 25,996,100 0%
Total Capital Revenue $0.00 $371,496.12 $271,516.88 0% $64,252,200 1%
Total Revenues $3,026,480.01 $18,820,269.99 $16,986,258.57 11% $100,267,200 19%

Expenses
Operating Expenses
Fixed Route and Paratransit $2,232,694.89 $13,322,795.15 $11,875,969.78 12% $27,495,000 48%
ACT Administrative Contract 0.00 0.00 250,000.00 -100% 420,000 0%
Rideshare 90,556.93 373,871.28 473,329.70 -21% 1,147,000 33%
Professional and Other Services 50,550.00 140,550.00 100,739.49 40% 326,000 43%
Trustee Expenses 1,104.27 6,653.40 6,631.70 0% 30,000 22%
District Office Expenses 39,461.09 164,949.49 194,025.34 -15% 620,000 27%
Facilities Maintenance 78,073.77 461,412.96 360,837.03 28% 955,000 48%
District Budget Contingency 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 1,000,000 0%
Total Operating Expenses $2,492,440.95 $14,470,232.28 $13,261,533.04 9% $31,993,000 45%
Capital Expenses
Bikeways $708,661.56 $1,608,240.29 $552,045.33 191% $29,482,705 5%
Bus Station/Stops and Park & Ride 12,718.26 299,888.96 177,144.64 100% 13,596,000 2%
Cooperative Police Bicycle Grant Program 0.00 0.00 7,452.00 0% 50,000 0%
Facility Improvements 8,733.50 159,104.76 253,781.17 -37% 19,860,000 1%
Maintenance Equipment 0.00 0.00 380,543.50 -100% 290,000 0%
MIS Equipment 23,753.86 27,922.86 9,004.00 0% 3,050,000 1%
Transit Support Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 95,300 0%
Vehicles - Buses 0.00 214,974.66 4,000.00 100% 23,291,000 1%
Vehicles - Rideshare Vans 0.00 33,962.00 0.00 0% 882,000 4%
Vehicles - Transit Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 211,000 0%
Contingency 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 2,000,000 0%
Total Capital Expenses $753,867.18 $2,344,093.53 $1,383,970.64 69% $92,808,005 3%
Total Expenses $3,246,308.13 $16,814,325.81 $14,645,503.68 15% $124,801,005 13%
Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenses ($219,828.12) $2,005,944.18 $2,340,754.89 -14% ($24,533,805) (8%)

Page 1 of 1



Current Period Year to Date

Actual Budget PctDeviation Actual Budget Deviation Pct ytd

Description

OPERATING REVENUE
Sales Tax Revenue 1,001,280.62 791,666.66 209,613.96 126.48 6,285,112.32 4,750,000.00 1,535,112.32 132.32

Interest Income 60,966.65 56,250.00 4,716.65 108.39 336,563.06 337,500.00 -936.94 99.72

IDOT Operating Assistance 1,532,688.12 1,375,000.00 157,688.12 111.47 8,682,688.12 8,250,000.00 432,688.12 105.24

Federal CARES Act Funding 0.00 406,250.00 -406,250.00 0.00 984,501.00 2,437,500.00 -1,452,999.00 40.39

Local Sales Tax Reform Fund 312,334.12 250,000.00 62,334.12 124.93 1,771,945.96 1,500,000.00 271,945.96 118.13

CMAQ Rideshare Marketing & Outreach 119,150.00 59,083.34 60,066.66 201.66 119,150.00 354,500.00 -235,350.00 33.61

Commuter Initiative 0.00 6,250.00 -6,250.00 0.00 0.00 37,500.00 -37,500.00 0.00

Fares 0.00 45,000.00 -45,000.00 0.00 85,000.00 270,000.00 -185,000.00 31.48

Other Revenue 60.50 11,750.00 -11,689.50 0.51 136,065.72 70,500.00 65,565.72 193.00

Lease/Rental Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47,747.69 0.00 47,747.69 0.00

3,026,480.01 3,001,250.00 25,230.01 100.84 18,448,773.87 18,007,500.00 441,273.87TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 102.45

CAPITAL REVENUE
Fed Transit Admin Section 5307 0.00 827,175.00 -827,175.00 0.00 240,619.00 4,963,050.00 -4,722,431.00 4.85

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality 0.00 373,500.00 -373,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,241,000.00 -2,241,000.00 0.00

Rebuild Illinois 0.00 1,229,750.00 -1,229,750.00 0.00 126,914.25 7,378,500.00 -7,251,585.75 1.72

Illinois Dept of Transportation 0.00 500,000.00 -500,000.00 0.00 3,962.87 3,000,000.00 -2,996,037.13 0.13

Illinois Dept of Natural Resources 0.00 61,750.00 -61,750.00 0.00 0.00 370,500.00 -370,500.00 0.00

Metro East Park and Recreation District 0.00 195,833.34 -195,833.34 0.00 0.00 1,175,000.00 -1,175,000.00 0.00

Future Grants 0.00 2,166,341.66 -2,166,341.66 0.00 0.00 12,998,050.00 -12,998,050.00 0.00

0.00 5,354,350.00 -5,354,350.00 0.00 371,496.12 32,126,100.00 -31,754,603.88TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 1.16

-5,329,119.99 36.22 -31,313,330.01TOTAL REVENUES 37.543,026,480.01 8,355,600.00 18,820,269.99 50,133,600.00

Madison County Mass Transit District
Income Statement with Budget Variance for the 

Period Ended December 31, 2021

01/19/2022 Page  1

11:47 am

OPERATING EXPENSES
-424,704.8597.44 96.91-58,555.112,232,694.89 2,291,250.00 13,322,795.15 13,747,500.00Fixed Route and Paratransit
-210,000.000.00 0.00-35,000.000.00 35,000.00 0.00 210,000.00ACT Administrative Contract
-199,628.7294.74 65.19-5,026.4190,556.93 95,583.34 373,871.28 573,500.00Rideshare
-22,450.00186.07 86.2323,383.3450,550.00 27,166.66 140,550.00 163,000.00Professional and Other Services
-8,346.6044.17 44.36-1,395.731,104.27 2,500.00 6,653.40 15,000.00Trustee Expenses

-145,050.5176.38 53.21-12,205.5739,461.09 51,666.66 164,949.49 310,000.00District Office Expenses
-16,087.0498.10 96.63-1,509.5778,073.77 79,583.34 461,412.96 477,500.00Facilities Maintenance

-500,000.000.00 0.00-83,333.340.00 83,333.34 0.00 500,000.00District Budget Contingency
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES -1,526,267.7293.49 90.46-173,642.392,492,440.95 2,666,083.34 14,470,232.28 15,996,500.00

CAPITAL EXPENSES
-12,974,555.2128.54 11.03-1,774,656.63708,661.56 2,483,318.19 1,608,240.29 14,582,795.50Bikeways
-6,498,111.041.12 4.41-1,120,281.7412,718.26 1,133,000.00 299,888.96 6,798,000.00Bus Station/Stops and Park & Ride

-25,000.000.00 0.00-4,166.660.00 4,166.66 0.00 25,000.00Cooperative Police Bicycle Grant Program
-9,770,895.240.53 1.60-1,646,266.508,733.50 1,655,000.00 159,104.76 9,930,000.00Facility Improvements

-145,000.000.00 0.00-24,166.660.00 24,166.66 0.00 145,000.00Maintenance Equipment
-1,497,077.149.35 1.83-230,412.8023,753.86 254,166.66 27,922.86 1,525,000.00MIS Equipment

-47,650.000.00 0.00-7,941.660.00 7,941.66 0.00 47,650.00Transit Support Equipment
-11,430,525.340.00 1.85-1,940,916.660.00 1,940,916.66 214,974.66 11,645,500.00Vehicles - Buses

-407,038.000.00 7.70-73,500.000.00 73,500.00 33,962.00 441,000.00Vehicles - Rideshare Vans
-105,500.000.00 0.00-17,583.340.00 17,583.34 0.00 105,500.00Vehicles - Transit Support

-1,000,000.000.00 0.00-166,666.660.00 166,666.66 0.00 1,000,000.00Contingency
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES -43,901,351.979.71 5.07-7,006,559.31753,867.18 7,760,426.49 2,344,093.53 46,245,445.50

TOTAL EXPENSES -45,427,619.6931.14 27.01-7,180,201.703,246,308.13 10,426,509.83 16,814,325.81 62,241,945.50

EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENSE -219,828.12 -2,070,909.83 -12,108,345.502,005,944.181,851,081.71 14,114,289.6810.62 -16.57

UNAUDITED



Madison County Mass Transit District
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2021

01/19/2022
11:47 am

Page  1

ASSETS
Checking Account 25,209.99
Savings Accounts 12,287,119.59
Illinois Funds Investment Pool 3,076,041.65
Investments 46,092,000.00
Inventory 932,846.83
Other Receivables 113,977.00
Sales Tax Receivable 3,226,774.99
Interest Receivable 48,003.76
Prepaid Expenses 234,333.25

66,036,307.06TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 3,794,871.59
Retainage Payable 66,990.10

3,861,861.69TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable Fund Balance 1,861,001.36
Assigned Fund Balance 28,555,804.64
Beginning Unassigned Fund Balance 29,751,695.19
Excess Revenue Over Expenses 2,005,944.18

31,757,639.37Total Unassigned Fund Balance
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 62,174,445.37

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 66,036,307.06

UNAUDITED



INSTITUTION
PURCHASE 

DATE

CD OR 
ACCOUNT 
NUMBER

MATURITY 
DATE

INTEREST 
RATES

CERTIFICATE 
AMOUNT

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
INTEREST

INVESTMENTS PURCHASED DIRECTLY BY MCT
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT (CD)
Bank of Hillsboro 02-06-19 ***76839 02-06-22 3.10% 1,250,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 05-01-19 ***70000 04-01-22 2.95% 1,000,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 05-01-19 ***71102 05-01-22 3.00% 500,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 11-23-20 ***74196 05-23-22 0.55% 1,000,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 11-08-19 ***78499 11-08-22 2.25% 2,000,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 11-23-20 ***74439 11-23-22 0.75% 1,000,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 03-06-20 ***72369 12-06-22 1.95% 1,000,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 03-06-20 ***77371 02-06-23 1.95% 1,000,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 11-01-21 ***71687 11-01-23 0.35% 942,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 11-23-20 ***79783 11-23-23 0.85% 1,000,000.00
Bank of Hillsboro 12-23-20 ***77918 12-23-23 0.75% 250,000.00
Bradford National Bank 11-01-21 ***40312 05-01-24 0.50% 1,000,000.00
Carrollton Bank 03-29-21 ***07550 05-29-23 0.41% 500,000.00
Carrollton Bank 03-29-21 ***07551 08-29-23 0.41% 500,000.00
Carrollton Bank 03-29-21 ***07552 10-29-23 0.41% 500,000.00
Carrollton Bank 12-23-20 ***07459 12-23-23 0.50% 1,000,000.00
Carrollton Bank 03-29-21 ***07553 01-29-24 0.46% 500,000.00
Carrollton Bank 03-29-21 ***07554 02-29-24 0.46% 500,000.00
Citizens Equity First Credit Union 11-15-19 ***86203 08-15-22 1.88% 1,000,000.00
Citizens Equity First Credit Union 11-15-19 ***86202 09-15-22 1.88% 1,000,000.00
Citizens Equity First Credit Union 12-23-20 ***86200 01-23-23 0.50% 2,000,000.00
Citizens Equity First Credit Union 12-23-20 ***86201 03-23-23 0.50% 1,000,000.00
FCB Banks 02-06-19 ***66535 01-06-22 3.04% 2,000,000.00
FCB Banks 04-05-19 ***66536 03-05-22 3.02% 1,000,000.00
FCB Banks 06-10-19 ***66538 05-10-22 2.87% 500,000.00
FCB Banks 06-10-19 ***66539 06-10-22 2.87% 1,000,000.00
FCB Banks 07-11-19 ***66720 07-11-22 2.66% 1,000,000.00
FCB Banks 11-23-20 ***56720 06-23-23 0.65% 1,500,000.00
State Bank of St. Jacob 07-27-20 ***12351 07-27-22 1.00% 630,000.00
State Bank of St. Jacob 08-25-20 ***12370 08-25-22 0.85% 480,000.00
United Community Bank 09-02-20 ***20970 09-02-23 0.95% 1,000,000.00

TOTAL CD'S 29,552,000.00 1.55%

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ACCOUNT REGISTRY SERVICE (CDARS)
Bank of Belleville 04-01-21 ***89108 03-28-24 0.71% 500,000.00
Edwardsville Bank 10-08-20 ***70579 10-06-22 0.75% 1,000,000.00
Edwardsville Bank 11-04-21 ***93402 11-03-22 0.25% 1,000,000.00
Edwardsville Bank 02-04-21 ***14073 03-30-23 0.60% 1,000,000.00
Edwardsville Bank 04-01-21 ***87288 10-19-23 0.45% 500,000.00
Edwardsville Bank 04-01-21 ***87296 03-28-24 0.55% 540,000.00
Town and Country Bank 11-04-21 ***96959 05-04-23 0.40% 1,000,000.00
Town and Country Bank 11-04-21 ***96916 11-28-24 0.81% 500,000.00

TOTAL CDARS 6,040,000.00 0.54%

TOTAL INVESTMENTS PURCHASED DIRECTLY BY MCT 35,592,000.00

TOTAL INVESTMENTS IN PORTFOLIO MANAGED BY BUSEY BANK (SEE SEPARATE REPORT FOR DETAILS) varies 10,500,000.00 varies

GRAND TOTAL MCT INVESTMENTS 46,092,000.00

CASH ACCOUNTS
MCT checking account 0.10% 25,209.99
MCT savings accounts 0.10% 12,287,119.59
Illinois Funds investment pool 0.066% 3,076,041.65
TOTAL CASH 15,388,371.23 0.09%

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 61,480,371.23

MCT DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS 
AT DECEMBER 31, 2021



12 months ending 12/31/21
$18,360,000 

51.58%12 months ending 12/31/22
$13,692,000 

38.47%

12 months ending 12/31/23
$3,540,000 

9.95%

MCT Investment Maturities by Year
As of December 31, 2021

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)

$4,250,000 
$4,000,000 $4,110,000

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$4,192,000

$2,040,000 

$1,000,000 

$0 

$500,000 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

MCT Investment Maturities by Quarter
As of December 31, 2021

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)



3.05%

2.33%

1.81%

1.37%

0.81%

0.53%

0.77%

0.55% 0.55% 0.50%

0.00%

0.81%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

March
2022

June 2022 September
2022

December
2022

March
2023

June 2023 September
2023

December
2023

March
2024

June 2024 September
2024

December
2024

MCT Investment Weighted Average Rate of Return by Quarter
As of December 31, 2021

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)



12 months ending 1/31/22
$16,360,000 

48.70%

12 months ending 1/31/23
$13,692,000 

40.76%

12 months ending 1/31/24
$3,540,000 

10.54%

MCT Investment Maturities by Year 
Proposed As of January 31, 2022         

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)

$2,250,000 

$4,000,000 $4,110,000

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$4,192,000 

$2,040,000 

$1,000,000 

$0 
$500,000 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

MCT Investment Maturities by Quarter
Proposed as of January 31, 2022        

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)



3.06%

2.33%

1.81%

1.37%

0.81%

0.53%

0.77%
0.55% 0.55% 0.50%

0.00%

0.81%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

March
2022

June 2022 September
2022

December
2022

March
2023

June 2023 September
2023

December
2023

March
2024

June 2024 September
2024

December
2024

MCT Investment Weighted Average Rate of Return by Quarter 
Proposed As of January 31, 2022          

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)



12 months ending 2/28/22
$15,110,000 

46.72%

12 months ending 2/28/23
$13,692,000 

42.34%

12 months ending 2/28/24
$3,540,000 

10.95%

MCT Investment Maturities by Year 
Proposed As of February 28, 2022        

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)

$1,000,000 

$4,000,000 $4,110,000

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$4,192,000 

$2,040,000 

$1,000,000 

$0 
$500,000 

$0 
$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

MCT Investment Maturities by Quarter
Proposed as of February 28, 2022        

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)



3.02%

2.33%

1.81%

1.37%

0.81%

0.59%

0.77%

0.55% 0.55% 0.50%

0.00%

0.81%

0.00%
0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

MCT Investment Weighted Average Rate of Return by Quarter
Proposed As of February 28, 2022        

(only includes the portfolio managed by MCT)



MCT Collateral Pledges as of December 31, 2021

INSTITUTION

MCT Deposit 
Balance At 
12/31/21

110% Of 
Deposits

Less FDIC 
Insurance

Collateral 
Needed

12/31/21 Fair 
Market Value 
Of Collateral 

Pledged
Excess 

Collateral
Associated Bank $0 $0 ($250,000) $0 $3,939,826 $3,939,826
Bank of Hillsboro $10,942,000 $12,036,200 ($250,000) $11,786,200 $13,976,412 $2,190,212
Bradford National Bank $1,000,000 $1,100,000 ($250,000) $850,000 $1,173,550 $323,550
Busey Bank $12,312,324 $13,543,557 ($250,000) $13,293,557 $14,526,220 $1,232,663
Carrollton Bank $3,500,000 $3,850,000 ($250,000) $3,600,000 $4,997,094 $1,397,094
CEFCU (formerly Simmons Bank) $5,000,005 $5,500,006 ($250,000) $5,250,006 $6,668,182 $1,418,176
FCB Banks $7,000,000 $7,700,000 ($250,000) $7,450,000 $9,038,259 $1,588,259
State Bank of St. Jacob $1,110,000 $1,221,000 ($250,000) $971,000 $1,037,800 $66,800
United Community Bank $1,000,000 $1,100,000 ($250,000) $850,000 $1,017,569 $167,569

Subtotal $41,864,330

CDARS investments $6,040,000
Illinois Funds Investment Pool $3,076,042

Total Cash and Investments at 12/31/21 $50,980,371
$0







 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Contract Award Summary 

 
 

To:  MCT Board of Directors 

From:  SJ Morrison, Managing Director 
Michelle Domer, Director of Accounting 

  Penny Brown, Director of Grants and Procurement 

Project: MCT Audit Services No. 22-1-17000 

Date:  January 25, 2022 

 

A Request for Quotes (RFQ) was issued to six companies on December 14, 2021, for the services of 
qualified and independent certified public accounting firm with extensive experience in governmental 
auditing and reporting to conduct audits of MCT’s financial statements, including the required opinion 
letters for the Illinois Downstate Operating Assistance Schedule, Illinois Consolidated Year End Financial 
Report, and FTA National Transit Database report.   
 
The contract will be for a base term of three (3) audit years beginning upon contract award for the 
FY2022 audit through the FY2024 audit (approx. November 30, 2024 or until all obligations have been 
satisfactorily fulfilled whichever occurs first), plus two 1-year options. The option years will be automatic 
unless the Owner advises the Contractor of their intent not to renew by November 15 of the prevailing 
contract term.  
 
Proposals were received from three firms. All proposals were deemed responsive. 
 
The evaluation team for this project consisted of three scoring members. The evaluation team reviewed 
the responsive proposals taking into consideration each proposer’s qualifications, experience, personnel 
assigned, approach, and budget/cost.  Below is the evaluation committee’s scoring. The maximum score 
possible was 100 points.  
 

Firms City State Final 
Score 

Scheffel Boyle Edwardsville IL 84.00 
Martin Hood LLC Champaign IL 83.38 
Clifton Larson Allen LLP St. Louis MO 74.45 

 
The budget established for the services in any awarded contract is $45,000 annually. An additional 
$10,000 is budgeted for optional work which may be requested, but not required, such as auditing 
services required by the Illinois Department of Natural Resources for bikeway project grants.  
 
Fees paid over the last three audit years were: FY19 $32,910; FY20 $34,470; and FY21 $35,550. 
 
Proposers submitted fully loaded hourly rates for pre-determined labor categories. These hourly rates 
were compared to fee schedules from information available regarding current market costs for 
comparable services. The hourly rates proposed by all three proposers were deemed fair and reasonable. 
All proposers received the maximum score of 20 points for pricing which is included in the Final Score 
above. 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
The fully loaded hourly rates and unit costs as proposed are firm for the first audit year. Subject to MCT’s 
review and approval, the rates and costs may be adjusted no more than once every 12 months in 
accordance with the firm’s normal review practices. Prices as proposed are summarized in the following 
chart based on each firm’s estimated hours for applicable labor category. 
 

Firms FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 Total 
Scheffel Boyle $37,407  $39,300  $41,500  $43,500  $45,000  $206,707  
Martin Hood LLC $43,000  $44,290  $45,619  $46,988  $48,398  $228,295  
Clifton Larson Allen LLP $40,020  prices not included in bid response for years 2-5 

 
The RFQ in Volume 1, Section 1.3 Basis of Contract Award, states that contract award, if any, will be 
made to a single responsive and responsible bidder deemed to have the professional experience and 
capabilities which are necessary to perform the services, and is otherwise determined to be in the best 
interest and value to the Owner.  
 
The proposal evaluation team has deemed the proposal by Scheffel Boyle as the most advantageous with 
price and other factors considered in accordance with the criteria and procedures described in the RFQ. A 
responsibility determination review concluded that this firm has the ability and resources to perform the 
services as described in the RFQ. 
 
Funding:  This contract may be partially funded by Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) through 
its Downstate Operating Assistance Grants, and or the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). 











































F
I
L

E
 
N

A
M

E
 
=

2
2

1
0

4
1

 
-
 
R

O
W

.
D

W
G

DATE:

JOB NO.:

CHKD BY:
DRAWN BY: WAM

SHEET   1   OF   1   SHEETS

221041

APPRAISAL PLAT

EG PLAZA, LLC

19-1-08-17-20-401-002 & 19-1-08-17-19-401-014

ILLINOIS DESIGN FIRM LICENSE NO.: 184.001115

SMK
7/14/2021

EXHIBIT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (PORTION TO BE ACQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 9 WEST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, MADISON COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A STONE MARKING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE ON AN ASSUMED BEARING OF SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTE 00 SECOND WEST ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, 330.53 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO EG PLAZA, LLC AS PARCEL 1, RECORDED IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE OF MADISON COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS DOCUMENT NO. 2018R06918, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING. FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTE 00 SECOND WEST ON SAID SOUTH LINE, 1,274.90 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF NIAGARA AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREE 18 MINUTES 00 SECOND EAST ON SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 35.01 FEET; THENCE NORTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTE 00 SECOND EAST ON A LINE BEING 35.00 FEET NORTHERLY OF AND PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE, 1,224.06 FEET; THENCE NORTH 26 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 59 SECONDS EAST, 44.70 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF A INGRESS AND EGRESS EASEMENT DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT AS PARCEL 2, RECORDED IN SAID RECORDER'S OFFICE AS DOCUMENT NO. 2020R17645, SAID EASEMENT CREATED BY DECLARATION OF EASEMENT RECORDED APRIL 23, 1986 IN ROLL 1511, FRAME 931; THENCE NORTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTE 00 SECOND EAST ON SAID SOUTHERLY LINE, 30.00 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID EG PLAZA, LLC TRACT; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREE 04 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST ON SAID EASTERLY LINE, 75.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 46,207 SQUARE FEET OR 1.061 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. THE ABOVE DESCRIBED TRACT BEING PART OF THE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED AS PARCEL 1 IN THE DEED TO EG PLAZA, LLC, AS RECORDED IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE OF MADISON COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS DOCUMENT NO. 2018R06918 AND BEING A PART OF PERMANENT TAX PARCEL 19-1-08-17-19-401-014 & 19-1-08-17-20-401-002.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL TOTAL HOLDING 21.532 ACRES   21.532 ACRES ±ROW REQUIRED    1.061 ACRES   1.061 ACRES ±AREA REMAINING  20.471 ACRES  20.471 ACRES ±

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFORMATION SHOWN HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM RECORD DOCUMENTS. IT IS NOT WARRANTED THAT THIS PLAT NOT WARRANTED THAT THIS PLAT CONTAINS COMPLETE INFORMATION REGARDING EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, RESTRICTIONS, RIGHTS OF WAY, BUILDING LINES AND OTHER ENCUMBRANCES. . FOR COMPLETE INFORMATION A TITLE OPINION OR COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE SHOULD BE OBTAINED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX RIGHT OF WAY LINE EX PROPERTY LINE EX SECTION LINE EX EASEMENT LINE PROPOSED PARCEL LINE RECORD MEASURED POINT OF COMMENCEMENT POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R) (M) POC POB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S90°00'00"W  1,605.60'(R) 1,605.43'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
330.53'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,275.07'(R) 1,274.90'(M) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°18'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N90°00'00"E  1,224.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°04'54"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
NIAGARA AVE (50' WIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NIAGARA AVE (40' WIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.A.  ROUTE 3 (VARIES)  ROUTE 3 (VARIES) (S.A. ROUTE 4) (LEWIS & CLARK BOULEVARD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTGATE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLENE ST (50' WIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REUTERS ADDITION TO EAST ALTON PB 26 PG 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 93

AutoCAD SHX Text
POC STONE SE CORN. SE 1/4 SECT. 17, T5N, R9W

AutoCAD SHX Text
POB

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE PINCHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F EG PLAZA, LLC 19-1-08-17-19-401-014 19-1-08-17-20-401-002 DOC NO. 2018R06918

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 19-1-08-17-20-401-002.001 DOC NO. 2020R17645

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F KANE SIBLINGS LLC 19-1-08-17-19-401-014.001 DOC NO. 2018R24276

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F VILLAGE OF EAST ALTON 19-1-08-20-00-000-006 BK 3349 PG 1880

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. LINE SE 1/4, SECT. 17, T5N, R9W N. LINE NE 1/4, SECT. 20, T5N, R9W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL HOLDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N90°00'00"E30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N26°29'59"E44.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INGRESS & EGRESS EASEMENT DOC NO. 2020R17645 ROLL 1511 FRAME 931

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'







M
CT

Goshen
Trail

Owner: Madison County
ID: 14-1-15-23-00-000-004.003

Madison County

ID
O

T

IDOT

Governors Parkway Governors Parkway

Pl
um

 S
t

Pl
um

 S
t

IDOT

Parcel to be Donated

MCT Owned Parcels F

Exhibit A


	Agenda
	Minutes
	Check Register
	Revenue and Expenses (December 2021)
	Income Statement
	Balance Sheet
	Schedule of Investments
	December Quarterly Investments
	January Quarterly Investments
	February Quarterly Investments
	MCT Collateral Pledges
	Resolution 22-32 Authorizing an Award of Contract for Auditing Services
	MCT Audit Services Contract Award Summary
	Managing Director's Report
	FOIA Report
	Virginia McCall Letter
	Bobbie Hatfield Letter
	Donna Cates Letter
	Rob and Kimberly Stroud Letter
	Candish Grant Letter
	Resolution 22-33 Authorizing the Filing of an Application with the East-West Gateway Council of Governments for Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Funds for the ALternative Transportation Program
	Resolution 22-34 Allowing all Madison County, Illinois Students in Grades K-12 to Ride the MCT Fixed ROute System Free of Charge with the 2022 MCT Summer Youth Pass
	Resolution 22-35 Authorizing Limited Free Rides on MCT Fixed Route Buses as Part of Spring 2022 Ridership Promotions
	Venice Township Letter
	Resolution 22-36 Authorizing the Purchase of a Vehicle for Venice Township, to Serve the Residents of Madison County, Illinois, and the Execution of Motor Vehicle Lease and/or Maintenance Agreement
	Resolution 22-37 Authorizing the Acquisition of Property, Including the Use of the Power of Eminent Domain
	Exhibit A
	Resolution  22-38 Authorizing the Acceptance of Real Property from Madison County
	Exhibit A
	Resolution 22-37  Authorizing the Aquisition of Property - Eminent Domain_PARTIALLY SIGNED.pdf
	Eastgate Trail Connection Appraisal Plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Appraisal Plat






